&

Valley Water

Santa Clara Valley Water District
Board Audit Committee Meeting

HQ. Bldg. Boardroom, 5700 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, California
Join Zoom Meeting: https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873

SPECIAL MEETING
AGENDA

Friday, December 19, 2025
10:00 AM

District Mission: Provide Silicon Valley safe, clean water for a healthy life, environment and economy.

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE All public records relating to an open session item on this agenda, which are not exempt DARIN TAYLOR Committee Liaison
Jim Beall, Chairperson - District 4 from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, that are distributed to a

Shiloh Ballard, Vice Chairperson - District 2 majority of the legislative body, will be available to the public through the legislative body =~ NICOLE MERRITT

Tony Estremera - District 6 agenda web page at the same time that the public records are distributed or made Deputy Clerk (Committee Meetings)

available to the legislative body. Santa Clara Valley Water District will make reasonable Office/Clerk of the Board
efforts to accommodate persons with disabilities wishing to participate in the legislative (408) 630-3262

body’s meeting. Please advise the Clerk of the Board Office of any special needs by nmerritt@valleywater.org
calling (408) 265-2600. www.valleywater.org

Note: The finalized Board Agenda, exception items and supplemental items will be posted prior to the meeting in accordance with the Brown Act.




Santa Clara Valley Water District
Board Audit Committee

SPECIAL MEETING
AGENDA

Friday, December 19, 2025 10:00 AM HQ. Bldg. Boardroom, 5700 Almaden
Expressway, San Jose, California

Join Zoom Meeting:

https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873

***IMPORTANT NOTICES AND PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS***

Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) Board of Directors/Board Committee
meetings are held as a “hybrid” meetings, conducted in-person as well as by
telecommunication, and is compliant with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access,
members of the public have an option to participate by teleconference/video
conference or attend in-person. To observe and participate in the meeting by
teleconference/video conference, please see the meeting link located at the top of the
agenda. If attending in-person, you are required to comply with Ordinance 22-03 - AN
ORDINANCE OF THE SANTA CLARA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SPECIFYING
RULES OF DECORUM FOR PARTICIPATION IN BOARD AND COMMITTEE
M E E T I N G S Il o ¢ a t e d a t
https://s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/valleywater.org.if-us-west-2/f2-live/s3fs-public/Or
d.pdf

In accordance with the requirements of Gov. Code Section 54954.3(a), members of the
public wishing to address the Board/Committee during public comment or on any item
listed on the agenda, may do so by filing out a Speaker Card and submitting it to the
Clerk or using the “Raise Hand” tool located in the Zoom meeting application to identify
yourself in order to speak, at the time the item is called. Speakers will be
acknowledged by the Board/Committee Chair in the order requests are received and
granted speaking access to address the Board.

. Members of the Public may test their connection to Zoom Meetings at:
https://zoom.us/test

« Members of the Public are encouraged to review our overview on joining Valley
Water Board Meetings at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TojJpY CxXmO0

Valley Water, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests
individuals who require special accommodations to access and/or participate in Valley
Water Board of Directors/Board Committee meetings to please contact the Clerk of the
Board’'s office at (408) 630-2711, at least 3 business days before the scheduled
meeting to ensure that Valley Water may assist you.

December 19, 2025 Page 1 0of 4

2



This agenda has been prepared as required by the applicable laws of the State of
California, including but not limited to, Government Code Sections 54950 et. seq. and
has not been prepared with a view to informing an investment decision in any of Valley
Water's bonds, notes or other obligations. Any projections, plans or other
forward-looking statements included in the information in this agenda are subject to a
variety of uncertainties that could cause any actual plans or results to differ materially
from any such statement. The information herein is not intended to be used by
investors or potential investors in considering the purchase or sale of Valley Water’s
bonds, notes or other obligations and investors and potential investors should rely only
on information filed by Valley Water on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s
Electronic Municipal Market Access System for municipal securities disclosures and
Valley Water's Investor Relations website, maintained on the World Wide Web at
h ttps :/ / e mma . m s r b . o r g/ a n d
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/financebudget/investor-relations,
respectively.

Under the Brown Act, members of the public are not required to provide identifying
information in order to attend public meetings. Through the link below, the Zoom
webinar program requests entry of a name and email address, and Valley Water is
unable to modify this requirement. Members of the public not wishing to provide such
identifying information are encouraged to enter “Anonymous” or some other reference
under name and to enter a fictional email address (e.g., attendee@valleywater.org) in
lieu of their actual address. Inputting such values will not impact your ability to access
the meeting through Zoom.

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://valleywater.zoom.us/j/91608079873
Meeting ID: 916 0807 9873
Join by Phone:

1(669) 900-9128, 91608079873#

1. CALL TO ORDER:
1.1.  Roll Call.

2. TIME OPEN FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON ANY ITEM NOT ON THE AGENDA.
Notice to the public: Members of the public who wish to address the Board/Committee
on any item not listed on the agenda may do so by filling out a Speaker Card and
submitting it to the Clerk or using the “Raise Hand” tool located in the Zoom meeting
application to identify yourself to speak. Speakers will be acknowledged by the
Board/Committee Chair in the order requests are received and granted speaking
access to address the Board/Committee. Speakers’ comments should be limited to
three minutes or as set by the Chair. The law does not permit Board/Committee action
on, or extended discussion of, any item not on the agenda except under special
circumstances. If Board/Committee action is requested, the matter may be placed on a
future agenda. All comments that require a response will be referred to staff for a reply
in writing. The Board/Committee may take action on any item of business appearing on
the posted agenda.

December 19, 2025 Page 2 of 4



3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

3.1

Approval of November 19, 2025, Board Audit Committee Minutes. 25-1058
Recommendation: Approve the minutes.

Manager: Candice Kwok-Smith, 408-630-3193

Attachments: Attachment 1: 11192025 BAC Minutes

4, REGULAR AGENDA:

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

Receive Progress Report on Implementing the Grants Management 25-0624
Performance Audit Recommendations.

Recommendation: Receive progress report on implementing the Grants
Management Performance Audit recommendations.

Manager: Rachael Gibson, 408-630-2884
Attachments: Attachment 1: Grants Audit Progress Report

Attachment 2: PowerPoint

Discuss the Valley Water Draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 25-0946
(ACFR) for the Fiscal Year (FY) Ending on June 30, 2025; and
Recommend Acceptance by the Full Board.

Recommendation: Discuss the Valley Water draft ACFR for the FY ending on
June 30, 2025, and recommend acceptance by the full Board.

Manager: Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068

Attachments: Attachment 1: FY25 Draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Rept.

Attachment 2: PowerPoint

Discuss 2025 Annual Audit Plan (Capital Project Delivery; Contracting 25-1046
Practices; Conservation Strategies; Water Usage/Demand Forecasting),
and Provide Feedback as Needed.

Recommendation: A. Discuss 2025 Annual Audit Plan; and
B. Provide feedback as needed.
Manager: Darin Taylor, 408-630-3068
Review and Discuss the Draft 2026 Board Audit Committee (BAC) Work 25-1045
Plan.

Recommendation: Review and discuss topics of interest raised at prior BAC
meetings and approve any necessary adjustments to the draft
2026 BAC Work Plan.

Manager: Candice Kwok-Smith, 408-630-3193
Attachments: Attachment 1: Draft 2026 BAC Work Plan

December 19, 2025

Page 3 of 4


https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13519
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a495a7d4-7021-4273-a4db-d8533f4d56e1.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13085
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fcf81d49-1c8a-4874-bea0-ec57ff673872.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24522425-541e-4508-947b-c3ea65565fd5.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13407
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=573747e9-028f-46b9-8a1e-df6b32eb1de6.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=74c28619-32ae-4ccd-b935-6239194c7b86.pdf
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13507
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13506
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c65d134d-0a92-4155-88ff-c5869e741b93.pdf

4.5. Review and Discuss 2025 Board Audit Committee (BAC) Work Plan. 25-1047

Recommendation: Review and discuss topics of interest raised at prior BAC
meetings and approve any necessary adjustments to the
2025 BAC Work Plan.

Manager: Candice Kwok-Smith, 408-630-3193
Attachments: Attachment 1: 2025 BAC Work Plan

5. CLERK REVIEW AND CLARIFICATION OF COMMITTEE REQUESTS.
This is an opportunity for the Clerk to review and obtain clarification on any formally
moved, seconded, and approved requests and recommendations made by the
Committee during the meeting.

6. ADJOURN:

6.1.  Adjourn. The Next Regular Meeting is Scheduled at 1:00 p.m., on January 21. 2026.

December 19, 2025 Page 4 of 4


https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=13508
https://scvwd.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=92564f74-6b01-4a29-a5cf-5579131ddc7d.pdf

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water
File No.: 25-1058 Agenda Date: 12/19/2025
Item No.: 3.1.
COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee
Government Code § 84308 Applies: Yes [1 No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)
SUBJECT:

Approval of November 19, 2025, Board Audit Committee Minutes.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the minutes.

SUMMARY:

In accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, a summary of Committee discussions, and details of all
actions taken by the Board Audit Committee, during all open and public Committee meetings, is
transcribed and submitted to the Committee for review and approval.

Upon Committee approval, minutes transcripts are finalized and entered into the Committee’s
historical records archives and serve as historical records of the Committee’s meetings.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACT:
The approval of minutes is not subject to environmental justice analysis.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: 11192025 BAC Minutes

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Candice Kwok-Smith, 408-630-3193

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 1 Printed on 12/12/2025
7 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



For full meeting record, please review meeting videos at:
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

Valley Water

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

DRAFT MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2025
1:00 PM

(Paragraph numbers coincide with agenda item numbers)

CALL TO ORDER:

A regular meeting of the Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) Board Audit
Committee (Committee) was called to order in the Valley Water Headquarters Building
Boardroom at 5700 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, California, and by Zoom
teleconference, at 1:00 p.m.

1.1

Roll Call.

Committee members in attendance were: District 6 Director Tony Estremera,
District 2 Director and Vice Chairperson Shiloh Ballard, and District 4 Director
Jim Beall, Chairperson presiding, constituting a quorum of the Committee.

Staff membersin attendance were: Wade Blackard, Jessica Collins, Meenakshi
Ganjoo, Rachael Gibson, Candice Kwok-Smith, Cecil Lawson, Olive Manaloto,
Jennifer Martin, Anthony Mendiola, Nicole Merritt, Tony Ndah, Carlos Orellana,
Luz Penilla, Alison Phagan, Mario Rivas, Manpreet Sra, Darin Taylor, Kristen
Yasukawa and Tina Yoke.

Public in attendance were: District 7 Valley Water Director Rebecca Eisenberg,
Cathy Brady, and George Skiles (Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting).

TIME OPEN FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON ANY ITEM NOT ON THE AGENDA:

Chairperson Beall declared time open for public comment on any item not on the
agenda. There was no one present who wished to speak.

3.1.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Approval of October 15, 2025, Board Audit Committee Meeting Minutes.
Recommendation:  Approve the minutes.

The Committee considered the attached minutes of the October 15, 2025
Committee meeting.

9 Attachment 1
Page 1 of 4


https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

For full meeting record, please review meeting videos at:
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

Public Comments:
None.

It was moved Vice Chairperson Ballard and seconded by Director Estremera
and was carried by unanimous vote that the minutes be approved.

4, REGULAR AGENDA:

41.

Discuss Potential Audit Topics for 2026 Annual Audit Plan and Provide
Further Guidance as Needed.

Recommendation: A. Discuss and identify potential audit topics for 2026
Annual Audit Plan; and
B. Recommend proposed audit topics for 2026 to the
Board.

George Skiles reviewed the information on this item, per the attached Committee
Agenda Memo, and reviewed the information contained in Attachment 1.

George Skiles, Darin Taylor, Anthony Mendiola were available to answer
questions.

Public Comments:
None.

The Committee received the information, and noted the following:

¢ The Committee noted the following potential audit topic
recommendations, assignments, and timelines provided by the Chief
Audit Executive (CAE): Risk Assessment: priority audit topic to be
conducted by CAE; Asset Management: to be assigned to Plante
Moran, anticipated to start in the first quarter of 2026; Pacheo Reservoir
close-out: to be assigned to Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, anticipated
to start in the late second quarter to early third quarter of 2026;
Investigations Process: to be assigned to Baker Tilly Advisory Group,
anticipated to start in second quarter of 2026; and the Good Neighbor
Program, or Grant Management Activities could be assigned to Baker
Tilly Advisory Group if the investigations process audit is not conducted
in 2026.

¢ The Committee confirmed there are no urgent high-risk audits not
included and noted the risk assessment process.

o The Committee noted support for the risk assessment to consider the
changes in the federal and state administrations and the impacts to Valley
Water and the Water Supply Master plan and noted that timing of the risk
assessment will depend upon the contracts process.

e The Committee noted the timing of the risk assessment may start in 2026
but may not be completed in time to be able to inform the 2027 Annual
Audit Plan.

e The Committee noted support for the upcoming risk assessment to identify
on the heat map which topics have been addressed versus those topics
that are still pending and whether any are high risk.

1 0 Attachment 1

Page 2 of 4


https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

For full meeting record, please review meeting videos at:
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

¢ The Committee confirmed that the CAE’s current contract has exhausted
the last option to extend and is set to expire in 2026.

It was moved by Director Estremera and seconded by Vice Chairperson
Ballard and carried by unanimous vote to approve the following
recommendation:

B. Recommend proposed audit topics for 2026 to the
Board.

The BAC approved to recommend the following proposed audit topics for 2026
to the Board: 1. Risk assessment, 2. Asset Management, 3. Pacheo Reservoir
(close-out), 4. Investigations Process.

4.2. Discuss 2025 Annual Audit Plan, (Capital Project Delivery; Contracting
Practices; Conservation Strategies; Water Usage/Demand Forecasting),
and Provide Feedback as Needed.

Recommendation: A. Discuss 2025 Annual Audit Plan,
B. Provide feedback as needed.

Darin Taylor and George Skiles reviewed the information on this item, per the
attached Committee Agenda Memo.

Darin Taylor and George Skiles were available to answer questions.

Public Comments:
None.

The Committee received the information, took no formal action, and confirmed
the audits are progressing and underway and without further discussion noted
the update on the 2025 Annual Audit Plan.

4.3. Review and Discuss the 2025 Board Audit Committee (BAC) Work Plan.

Recommendation: Review and discuss topics of interest raised at prior
BAC meetings and approve any necessary
adjustments to the 2025 BAC Work Plan.

Darin Taylor reviewed the information on this item, per the attached
Committee Agenda Memo, and per the information contained in
Attachment 1.

Darin Taylor and George Skiles were available to answer questions.

Public Comments:
None.

The Committee received the information, took no formal action, and confirmed
the next Board member audit training is scheduled for mid-year in 2026 and
noted support for attendance at additional outside audit trainings and the
update on the BAC Work Plan.

1 1 Attachment 1
Page 3 of 4


https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

For full meeting record, please review meeting videos at:
https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

5. CLERK REVIEW AND CLARIFICATION OF COMMITTEE REQUESTS:
This is an opportunity for the Clerk to review and obtain clarification on any formally

moved, seconded, and approved requests and recommendations made by the
Committee during the meeting.

Nicole Merritt confirmed the Committee discussed and provided feedback on the
potential audit topics for 2026 Annual Audit Plan and approved to recommend the
following proposed audit topics for 2026 to the Board: 1. Risk assessment, 2.
Asset Management, 3. Pacheo Reservoir (close-out), 4. Investigations Process
under Item 4.1; noted the 2025 Annual Audit Plan update under Item 4.2; and
noted the 2025 BAC Work Plan under Item 4.3.

6. ADJOURN:

6.1.  Adjourn. The Next Regular Meeting is Scheduled at 1:00 p.m. on December
17, 2025.

Chairperson Beall adjourned the meeting at 1:27 p.m. The next regular
meeting was scheduled to occur at 1:00 p.m. on December 17, 2025,

but was subsequently rescheduled to a special meeting at 10:00 a.m. on
December 19, 2025.

Nicole Merritt,
Deputy Clerk (Committee Meetings)

Date approved:

1 2 Attachment 1

Page 4 of 4


https://www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/committees/board-committees

A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water
File No.: 25-0624 Agenda Date: 12/19/2025
Item No.: 4.1.
COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee
Government Code § 84308 Applies: Yes [1 No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)
SUBJECT:

Receive Progress Report on Implementing the Grants Management Performance Audit
Recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION:
Receive progress report on implementing the Grants Management Performance Audit
recommendations.

SUMMARY:

On February 17, 2021, the Board Audit Committee accepted the Grants Management Performance
Audit Report by TAP International’s subconsultants, Greta MacDonald and Drummond Kahn.
Subsequently, the Grants Management Performance Audit Report was accepted by the Board of
Directors on March 23, 2021. Since then, staff has continued implementing the 11 recommendations
as described in the Management Response to the audit report and will provide progress updates to
the Board Audit Committee semi-annually. The last progress update to the Board Audit Committee
was on February 19, 2025.

Since the last update, all of the 11 audit recommendations have been achieved. A summary of the 11
recommendations is included as Attachment 1.

Grants Redesign Completed

On May 28, 2024, the Board of Directors approved the grants redesign recommendations and
authorized updates to improve grants administration and address the remaining audit
recommendations. The recommendations were developed with two consultants who helped gather
input from grantees, and incorporate peer benchmarking and industry best practices.

e Mini-Grant Program - The redesigned Mini-Grant Program was launched in Fall 2024 and
accepts applications year-round. This program includes increased funding per award, no
match funding requirement, a streamlined application process, and expanded eligible project

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 3 Printed on 12/12/2025

1 3 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

File No.: 25-0624 Agenda Date: 12/19/2025
Item No.: 4.1.

costs.

e Standard Grant Program - The redesigned Standard Grant Program launched with the FY25
grant cycle on January 23. Applications were due by March 28, 2025, and grant awards were
made by the Board on June 24, 2025. This program included a streamlined application,
reduced or removed match funding requirements, expanded eligible project costs, and a
project readiness criterion to evaluate due diligence and financial viability.

Upon the complete implementation of the FY25 Standard Grant cycle, all recommendations from the
2021 Grants Management Performance Audit Report have been achieved.

Grants Redesign Assessment

Staff worked with the grants redesign consultant, Vital Impact (formerly Arabella Advisors), to
evaluate the first year of implementation for the redesigned grants program. The assessment
included collecting anonymous feedback from grantees and applicants through an email survey and
self-selected interviews. Thirty-eight individuals were invited to participate, which included grantees
who were awarded funds and applicants who were not awarded funds. Fourteen individuals
responded to the survey, and five respondents self-selected to have a follow-up interview with Vital
Impact.

Highlights from the grants redesign assessment:

1. Overall, respondents thought the application’s core components and process were user-
friendly and clear.

2. However, some applicants gave feedback that the application was “somewhat difficult” and
found the process too time-consuming.

3. Generally, returning applicants perceived the 2025 application process as more streamlined
than past cycles and appreciated the updates.

4. Applicants appreciated the application support resources Valley Water provided (though a few
were not aware of all the resources available).

Overall, applicants had a positive experience with the redesigned Standard Grants application
process. Most did not find it difficult, indicated that they plan to apply again, and, among repeat
applicants, stated that the recent changes streamlined the application process and significantly
influenced their decision to reapply this year.

Recommendations for future grant cycles:

1. Build in feedback loops: Add a brief question at the end of the application form to collect
applicant feedback while the experience is still fresh and just before they submit. To
encourage candid responses and avoid concern that their input could affect funding decisions,
use positive framing. For example: “What process recommendations do you have for Valley
Water to continue to improve your experience as an applicant?”

2. Continue identifying opportunities to streamline the application: Though applicants said
the time required was comparable to other government grant applications, some still noted it
was lengthy. Continue gathering staff and applicant input on what questions or sections could
be reduced, especially those that do not provide essential information for panelists’ decision-

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 2 of 3 Printed on 12/12/2025

1 4 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

File No.: 25-0624 Agenda Date: 12/19/2025
Item No.: 4.1.

making.

3. Clarify challenges with Fluxx: Continue to explore which aspects of the Fluxx grants
management (Fluxx) system were confusing or cumbersome for applicants. Identify ways to
mitigate challenges, either through external guidance (e.g., in application templates and
reference documents) or adjustments within the Fluxx platform.

4. Maintain open houses: Applicants valued the open houses not only for helping them
understand the Standard Grants application process but also found them valuable for
connecting with other organizations, and to learn about Valley Water’s broader work.

5. Highlight available support: Continue offering responsive support via email and one-on-one
calls, and make these options more visible, especially within the application form and Fluxx
portal.

The complete results from the assessment are enclosed as Attachment 2.

Staff will consider implementing the feedback where appropriate and applicable within Valley Water’s
guidelines, as a fiscally responsible public agency, and in accordance with the Safe, Clean Water and
Natural Flood Protection Program.

Next Steps

Staff are committed to continually improving the Safe, Clean Water Grants & Partnerships Program to
meet community needs. As part of the grants redesign, the Board also approved delegating authority
to the Board Policy and Monitoring Committee for periodic review of the grants administration and to
implement improvements as needed related to the project criteria framework, agreement terms, and
grant cycles. Therefore, staff will provide reports and recommendations to the Board Policy and
Monitoring Committee as needed moving forward.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACT:

There are no environmental justice impacts associated with the grants audit progress report. This
action is unlikely to or will not result in adverse impacts and is not associated with an equity
opportunity.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Grants Mgt. Performance Audit Progress Report
Attachment 2: PowerPoint

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Rachael Gibson, 408-630-2884

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 3 of 3 Printed on 12/12/2025

1 5 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

16



Grants Management Performance Audit Progress Report — December 2025 Update

Audit Recommendation

Implementation Status

Valley Water should consider developing clear guidelines for
“right-sized” application and reporting processes, meaning that
application and reporting requirements should be scaled to fit the
size, risk, and complexity of each individual grant:

a. Valley Water should develop a formal due diligence policy and
perform a due diligence review for high risk grant projects. A
due diligence review of applicants determines the
reasonableness of the grant and grantee’s ability to perform

and assess the extent of the grantee’s reliance on grant funds.

This would include analysis of managerial and fiscal capacity
and past performance. For example, verify grantees have the
requisite financial management systems that will produce
invoice detail required by the grant agreement, or, gain an
understanding of the type of system capabilities the non-profit
has to assess whether they can comply with financial
reporting required by the grant agreement.

b. For high-risk grants where financial statements are required,
analyze fiscal health indicators of the entity and formalize the
analysis within the grant file. For areas where Valley Water
already implements a number of best practices such as
checking GuideStar to verify the non-profits current status and
to view the grantee’s IRS Form 990, staff should also
memorialize its analysis in the grant file.

c. For smaller non-profits or community groups, based on risk,
Valley Water should consider simplifying reporting
requirements or developing alternative requirements for
projects under a dollar threshold, like $25,000, or establish a
tiered structure and treat smaller projects similar to mini-
grants.

Achieved - June 2025

On May 28, 2024, the Board approved the Grants Redesign Project
recommendations to update and improve the administration of the
Safe, Clean Water Grants and Partnerships Program. This included
updates for all grant types, the Mini-Grant Program, and Standard
Grant Program that addresses the audit recommendations. Staff
continues to work with consultants and internal subject matter
experts to implement the approved Grants Redesign Project
recommendations.

The redesigned Mini-Grant Program launched in Fall 2024 and
accepts applications year-round. The redesigned Mini-Grant
Program includes increased funding per award, no match funding
requirement, a streamlined application process, and expanded
eligible project costs.

The redesigned Standard Grant Program launched with the FY25
grant cycle in January 2025 and grant awards were made in Spring
2025. The redesigned Standard Grant Program includes a
streamlined application, reduced or removed match funding
requirement, expanded eligible project costs, and a project
readiness criterion to evaluate due diligence and financial viability.

This recommendation was completed in FY25, upon the completion
of the FY25 standard grant cycle.

As new grants are awarded, an orientation for new grantees
should be mandatory, and Civic Engagement should provide an
electronically accessible grantee guide, outlining all requirements
for programmatic and financial reporting compliance. This can be
as simple as compiling existing documents, developing reporting
templates and developing a process map and including
instructions on who to call based on the nature of the question.

Achieved — November 2022

Staff began implementing kick-off/orientation meetings with all new
standard grantees and partners after agreement execution in early
FY21. Staff send an onboarding email to mini-grantees with the
grant information as part of the award notification. Staff remain
available and accessible to all grantees throughout the process.

A consultant was hired to create a Grantee Guide to outline
processes and procedures for applicants and grantees. These

17

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 5




documents were completed and are being formatted for posting on
the website. The documents will be continually updated as changes
are made to the program.

Best practices suggest utilizing a grant management information
system to run regular reports to track timeliness and to conduct
other monitoring activities. While many monitoring functionalities
for FLUXX remain in progress, we recommend, at a minimum,
adding another column to the Grant Tracker spreadsheet to track
the 45-calendar day payment window once initial contact has
been made with the grantee. These payment cycle time metrics
should be tracked and reported internally monthly, and to the
Board Audit Committee quarterly.

Achieved — September 2021

Staff continue to track the timeliness and monitoring of grants
activities. Staff continue to process invoices within the 30-day
payment deadline once an invoice is approved.

In 2025, 88 invoices were processed. On average, invoices were
approved for payment within 16 days of final invoice documents
being submitted by the grantee.

Monitoring should be conducted, either manually or through
automated reminder emails in FLUXX, to ensure that a progress
report, or another form of communication from a grantee, is
submitted quarterly ensure that Valley Water is kept apprised of
project status and to ensure that work is aligned with the grant
agreement.

Achieved — September 2021

Staff set up automatic reminders in the Fluxx grants management
system, and continue to monitor grant projects by reviewing project
status reports and following up via email.

In addition to right sizing invoicing requirements based on the
grant’s risk level, Valley Water should right-size the level of
progress reporting detail required for smaller dollar value standard
grants, for example, under $25,000.

Achieved — June 2025

On May 28, 2024, the Board approved the Grants Redesign Project
recommendations to update and improve the administration of the
Safe, Clean Water Grants and Partnerships Program. This included
updates for all grant types, the Mini-Grant Program, and Standard
Grant Program that addresses the audit recommendations. Staff
continues to work with consultants and internal subject matter
experts to implement the approved Grants Redesign Project
recommendations.

The redesigned Mini-Grant Program launched in Fall 2024 and
accepts applications year-round. The redesigned Mini-Grant
Program includes providing 50% of the funds after agreement
execution and the remaining after the project is completed, without
requiring financial documentation.

The redesigned Standard Grant Program launched with the FY25
grant cycle in January 2025 and grant awards were made in Spring
2025. The redesigned Standard Grant Program includes a
streamlined budget template and reduced reporting requirements.

18

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 5




This recommendation was completed in FY25, upon the completion
of the FY25 standard grant cycle.

Valley Water should explore where, within existing District
policies, it can augment grant requirements for grant agreements
and invoicing for certain grantees based on risk: partnerships,
repeat grantees, establish grant value thresholds, and determine
whether the number of approvals and signatures for payments are
appropriate. At a minimum, for smaller, lower risk grants, Valley
Water should re-assess its reporting and invoicing requirements
based on risk, dollar value, and project complexity.

a. For example, Valley Water could treat grant agreements up to
$25,000 like mini-grants and expedite payment for low-risk
grants and low dollar amount invoices from trusted long-term
grantees. Valley Water could consider paying unquestioned
amounts earlier, and focus more scrutiny on riskier, larger
dollar amount invoices from new grantees.

b. Valley Water could also consider reimbursing expenses when
invoiced and then using the closeout process to reconcile
remaining amounts below a reasonable threshold. For
example, if a grantee bills $10,000 for its performance, and
Valley Water questions $500 of that amount, it could consider
paying the unquestioned amount first, then resolve the
questioned amount by project.

c. Staff should focus their review on whether grantee costs are
reasonable, allocable and allowable in accordance with the
project budget and grant agreement guidelines. Spot checks
would be performed to ensure calculations are correct and
that receipts match the totals. The level of scrutiny applied
and depth of review would be based on the grant and grantee
risk factors, as determined by management.

Achieved - June 2025

On May 28, 2024, the Board approved the Grants Redesign Project
recommendations to update and improve the administration of the
Safe, Clean Water Grants and Partnerships Program. This included
updates for all grant types, the Mini-Grant Program, and Standard
Grant Program that addresses the audit recommendations. Staff
continues to work with consultants and internal subject matter
experts to implement the approved Grants Redesign Project
recommendations.

The redesigned Mini-Grant Program launched in Fall 2024 and
accepts applications year-round. The redesigned Mini-Grant
Program includes providing 50% of the funds after agreement
execution and the remaining after the project is completed, without
requiring financial documentation.

The redesigned Standard Grant Program launched with the FY25
grant cycle in January 2025 and grant awards were made in Spring
2025. The redesigned Standard Grant Program includes a
streamlined budget template and reduced invoicing and reporting
requirements. Insurance costs are an eligible cost for both grant
opportunities.

This recommendation was completed in FY25, upon the completion
of the FY25 standard grant cycle.

Should Valley Water decide to continue to require the same

information for progress and invoice submission, they should:

a. Confirm the integrity of grantee financial management system
data used for review before award.

b. Include language in the grant agreement such as, “Failure to
submit an accurate financial invoice in a timely manner may
result in payments being withheld, delayed, or denied, and will
result in payment delays”.

Achieved — June 2025

On May 28, 2024, the Board approved the Grants Redesign Project
recommendations to update and improve the administration of the
Safe, Clean Water Grants and Partnerships Program. This included
updates for all grant types, the Mini-Grant Program, and Standard
Grant Program that addresses the audit recommendations. Staff
continues to work with consultants and internal subject matter
experts to implement the approved Grants Redesign Project
recommendations.

19

Attachment 1
Page 3 of 5




The redesigned Mini-Grant Program launched in Fall 2024 and
accepts applications year-round. The redesigned Mini-Grant
Program includes providing 50% of the funds after agreement
execution and the remaining after the project is completed, without
requiring financial documentation.

The redesigned Standard Grant Program launched with the FY25
grant cycle in January 2025 and grant awards were made in Spring
2025. The redesigned Standard Grant Program includes a
streamlined budget template and reduced invoicing and reporting
requirements. Insurance costs are an eligible cost for both grant
opportunities.

This recommendation was completed in FY25, upon the completion
of the FY25 standard grant cycle.

8 Valley Water should solicit grantee and partnership feedback Achieved - September 2021
regularly, conducted by an independent third party, as best A consultant conducted an anonymous survey of grantees in July
practices suggest. In addition to assessing satisfaction with the 2021 and results were presented to the Board Audit Committee in
program, inquiries should be made to determine the extent to September 2021. Staff plan to conduct regular anonymous surveys
which partial funding has impacted the grantee and the project. of grantees to collect feedback to continually improve the program.
In Fall 2025, staff worked with a consultant to assess the
redesigned grants program and conduct an anonymous survey of
grantees and applicants to provide feedback on the program
changes.
9 Valley Water should determine a reasonable goal and timeline for | Achieved — September 2021
final closeout and final payment, including the release of retention. | Staff established a 60-day timeline to close out a project after the
The established dates and timelines should be monitored in the final invoice is paid in full, and continue to track and monitor it the
Grant Tracker and when possible, included in any automated flags | grants tracking sheet on a weekly basis.
and alerts that FLUXX can provide.
10 Valley Water should prioritize developing a grants management Achieved — November 2022

operations manual containing all relevant policies and
procedures.

A consultant was hired to work on the Grants Manual to outline
processes and procedures for staff. These documents were
completed and are being formatted for posting on the internal
website for staff. The documents will be continually updated as
changes are made to the program.

20

Attachment 1
Page 4 of 5




11

To ensure that staff understand and carry out their internal control
responsibilities, and to promote accountability, Valley Water
should consider reconfiguring job assignments to enhance the
grants management function once the backlog has been
addressed and policies and procedures are developed:

a. Option 1: Assign Staff by Priority Area and Specific Grants.
This would allow staff to become familiar with the priority area,
programs and grantees, as well as create a balanced number
of programs a grant manager is expected to manage. This
would benefit the grantee with the assignment of a single point
of contact for questions at any phase of the project. This
would allow for important information concerning a grantee,
and project details learned in the application stage to transfer
to active project management and throughout the life of the
project. The downside to this option is that grant managers
would still be required to perform duties that they might not
have the technical capacity, knowledge or authorization to
properly perform, such as a subject expert having
responsibility for invoice processing, or a finance and
accounting expert having responsibility for program oversight.

b. Option 2: Split Application and Active Grant Management
Duties. Civic Engagement may consider dividing the work
performed during the application cycle and work performed
during the active project management cycle into two separate
positions or teams. From an efficiency perspective, this
delineation could improve overall workflow by decreasing
bottlenecks that occur during certain times of the year (e.g.,
the allocation/application cycle) and ensure that a sufficient
number of staff remains focused on active grant management,
such as invoice review processing and monitoring.
Additionally, with such a delineation of duties, one individual
could be assigned to or specialize in contracts and billings for
all grants.

c. Once job assignments are determined, the Supervising
Program Administrator and Unit Manager should develop a
training manual and schedule that clearly identifies the type of
training needed to effectively perform specified job duties to
address any gaps in staff knowledge, skills and abilities.

d. As the Safe, Clean Water grants program grows, and the
grants management function within Civic Engagement
expands, develop grants management position descriptions.

Achieved — September 2021

The staff positions have designated roles and responsibilities.
However, one position was recently promoted out of the grants
program to another Valley Water division, and recruitment efforts
are underway to fill the vacancy as soon as possible.

The grants team continues to meet weekly to ensure sufficient
cross-training on all grants management tasks and active items to
ensure cohesive, consistent, and uninterrupted customer service to
all grantees.

The grants team identified individual training opportunities through
the Valley Water annual goal-setting process to continue learning
industry best practices and expand knowledge of grants
management. Staff continues to explore and participate in
additional grants training to ensure best practices continue to be
updated and implemented.

21

Attachment 1
Page 5 of 5




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

22



DECEMBER 17, 2025

IMPACT B¢

Valley Water Standard Grants

Grants Redesign Assessment

Board Audit Committee
23 December 19, 2025

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 6



Overall, applicants thought the application’s core components and process were
user-friendly and clear.

Question: Please indicate the extent to which you agree with the following statements about the Standard Grant Application.
(13 respondents)

100% -+
90% -
80% -
70% -
60% -
50% -
40% -

H Agree Strongly
1 Agree Somewhat

Neither Agree nor Disagree

30% 1 n=4 m Disagree Strongly
n=4 n=4
20% - n=3
n=2
10%
n=2
0% ] | | 1
The application questions The Fluxx application The required budget template The eligibility criteria for the Valley Water’s approachto
were easy to understand and platform was user-friendly. was easy to understand and grant were clear. assessing and scoring
complete. complete. applications was clear.

Disagree Somewhat

24

Attachment 2, Page 2 of 6



However, some applicants gave feedback that the application was “somewhat difficult”
and found the process too time-consuming.

About a third (n=4) said the process was 62% (n=8) said the application took them more
“somewhat difficult.” than 10 hours to complete.

Question: Approximately how much time did it take to complete your
2025 Standard Grant application (including coordination with partners, if
applicable)? (n=13)

Question: Overall, how difficult was it to navigate and complete this
year’s Standard Grant application process? (n=13)

More than
10 hours

8-10

Nours
n=1,

8%

Note: SCVW does not have baseline data for how long Standard Grant applications took in previous
grant cycles. Two applicants said in interviews that the time it took to complete the Standard Grant
2|5 application (10+ hours) was comparable to the amount of time they had spent on other agencies’

grants.
Attachment 2 Page 3 of 6




Generally, returning applicants perceived the 2025 application process as
more streamlined than past cycles and appreciated the updates.

Of five applicants who indicated that they had applied in prior years:

* Two said this year’s application was “better or easier”; one said it took
about the same amount of time; and two said it took more time than
in the past.

* Three said their decision to reapply this year was “significantly”
influenced by changes including the revised grant categories, full
funding of grant requests, eliminating match requirements, and making
insurance costs reimbursable. These changes all lessened the burden of
the applying.

* When it comes to the reduction in match requirements for stewardship
grants from 25% to 15%,
. This is because only one prior applicant reapplied for
a stewardship grant this year (saying it did not influence their decision
to apply). Valley Water should continue seeking feedback from
applicants to understand the importance of this shift.

26

‘ ‘ In the past we had to share the same
information in different ways. This
time there were no redundancies.”

—Interviewee

‘ ‘ Not having to provide matching funds
was a real relief—it made the process
more achievable.”

—Interviewee

Attachment 2, Page 4 of 6



Applicants appreciated the application support resources Valley Water provided

(though a few were not aware of all the resources available).

Question: Which of the following resources did you use to learn about the grant program and
application process, and how helpful were they?

12

10 Users 10 Users

10

8

6 Users 6 Users n=7
6 5 Users m Very helpful
Somewhat helpful
4 H Not at all helpful
2 n=4
n=1 n=3
n=2
n=1 n=1

In-person open house  Virtual informational  Scheduling a meeting  Email communication  Written materials such
event workshop with Valley Water staff with Valley Water as grant guidelines,
templates, FAQs, or
sample applications

27

Nearly all respondents who used
support resources found them
“somewhat” or “very helpful.”

Interviewees said the support
resources they used made the
application process more
transparent.

A few applicants were not aware of
the options to book meetings or
attend virtual workshops, and
suggested that resource visibility
on the website, and within the
portal or application itself could
be improved.

Attachment 2, Page 5 of 6



Takeaways and Recommendations

Overall, applicants had a positive experience with the Standard Grants application process. Most did not find it difficult, indicated

they plan to apply again, and—among repeat applicants—said the recent changes streamlined the application and significantly
influenced their decision to reapply this year.

Recommendations for future grant cycles:

1.

Build in feedback loops: Add a brief question at the end of the 3.

application form to collect applicant feedback while the experience is
still fresh and just before they submit. To encourage candid

responses and avoid concern that their input could affect funding
decisions, use positive framing. For example: “What process
recommendations do you have for Valley Water to continue to

improve your experience as an applicant?” 4.

Continue identifying opportunities to streamline the

application: Though applicants said the time required was
comparable to other government grant applications, some still noted

it was lengthy. Continue gathering staff and applicant input on what 5.
guestions or sections could be reduced—especially those that do not
provide essential information for panelists’ decision-making.

28

Clarify challenges with Fluxx: Continue to explore which aspects
of the Fluxx system were confusing or cumbersome for applicants.
Identify ways to mitigate challenges, either through external
guidance (e.g., in application templates and reference documents) or
adjustments within the Fluxx platform.

Maintain open houses: Applicants valued the open houses not
only for helping them understand the Standard Grants application
process but also found them valuable for connecting with other
organizations, and to learn about Valley Water’s broader work.

Highlight available support: Continue offering responsive

support via email and one-on-one calls and make these options more
visible—especially within the application form and Fluxx portal.

Attachment 2, Page 6 of 6



A Santa Clara Valley Water District

Valley Water
File No.: 25-0946 Agenda Date: 12/19/2025
Item No.: 4.2.
COMMITTEE AGENDA MEMORANDUM
Board Audit Committee
Government Code § 84308 Applies: Yes [1 No
(If “YES” Complete Attachment A - Gov. Code § 84308)
SUBJECT:

Discuss the Valley Water Draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the Fiscal Year
(FY) Ending on June 30, 2025; and Recommend Acceptance by the Full Board.

RECOMMENDATION:
Discuss the Valley Water draft ACFR for the FY ending on June 30, 2025, and recommend
acceptance by the full Board.

SUMMARY:

The ACFR for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2025, was audited by Valley Water’'s external
auditor, Vasquez and Company, LLP. It is anticipated that the auditor will issue an unmodified
(“clean”) opinion stating that Valley Water’s financial statements are fairly presented in conformity
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), as established by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Draft ACFR is provided as Attachment 1. Vasquez and
Company prepared a PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 2) to share with the Board Audit
Committee related to their audit for the year ending June 30, 2025.

ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACT:
There are no environmental justice impacts associated with the FY 2024-25 financial audit.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: FY25 Draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
Attachment 2: PowerPoint

UNCLASSIFIED MANAGER:
Candice Kwok-Smith, 408-630-3193

Santa Clara Valley Water District Page 1 of 1 Printed on 12/12/2025

29 powered by Legistar™


http://www.legistar.com/

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

30



Santa Clara Valley Water District
also referred to as

Valley Water
Serving Santa Clara County, California

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

Prepared by the General Accounting Services Unit

Darin Taylor, Chief Financial Officer
Oliva Manaloto, Accounting Manager

3 1 Attachment 1
Page 1 of 205



32

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 205



Table of Contents

Introductory Section

Letter of Transmittal
GFOA Certificate of Achievement
Organizational Chart

Board of Directors

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

13
14

15
19

38
41

42

45

46

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position -
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Custodial Fund
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Custodial Fund

33 Attachment 1
Page 3 of 205

48
50

53
54
57
58



NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) The Financial Reporting Entity

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(3) Cash and Investments

(4) REIMBURSEMENT OF CAPITAL COSTS
(5) Investment Income

(6) Capital Assets

(7) Short-Term and Long-Term Liabilities

(8) Property Taxes and Benefit Assessments
(9) Fund Balances

(10) Net Position

(11) Employees Retirement Plan

(12) Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
(13) Risk Management

(14) Interfund Transfers

(15) Commitments

(16) Contingencies

(17) Subsequent Events

(18) Certain Risk Disclosures (GASB 102)

~— N N N ~—

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Schedule of Employer Pension Contributions - Last 10 Years
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios - Last 10

Years*

59
61
73
80
81
82
86
100
101
103
105
111
119
120
121
123
135
135

138
140

142

Schedule of Employer Other Post Employment Benefit Contributions - Last 10

Years*

143

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget

and Actual

Budgeted Governmental Funds
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

34

144

146

Attachment 1
Page 4 of 205



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Selected Watershed Activities Contained Within the Watershed and Stream

Stewardship Funds:
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances
Selected Watershed Activities

Within the Watershed and Stream Stewardship Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Selected Watershed Activities

Within the Watershed and Stream Stewardship Fund

Water Enterprise and State Water Project Funds:
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
Internal Service Funds:

Combining Statement of Net Position

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position -
Budget and Actual

Internal Service Funds
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Activities:
Schedule by Source
Schedule By Function and Activity
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)

Financial Trends

Net Position by Component

Change in Net Position

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Revenue Capacity

Water Revenue by Category

Principal Water Revenue Customers

35

150

152

156

159
160
161

162

166
167
168

170
172
174
176

185
179

Attachment 1
Page 5 of 205



Water Enterprise Rates Summary
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Property Tax Rates-Direct and Overlapping Governments
Principal Property Tax Payers
Debt Capacity
Computation of District Act Debt Margin
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type
Revenue Bond Coverage
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
Demographic and Economic Information
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers
Operating Information
Full-time Equivalent Employees by Function/Program
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Flood Control System Historical Operating Results

36

180
182
183
184

185
186
188
190

192
193

194
195
196
197

Attachment 1
Page 6 of 205



A
L~

Valley Water

Clean Water  Healthy Environment « Flood Protection
Letter of Transmittal

December 20, 2025

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VALLEY WATER AND CITIZENS OF SANTA CLARA
VALLEY:

It is our pleasure to submit the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the Santa
Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The ACFR
is prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the
United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with Valley Water. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various activities of Valley Water. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of Valley Water’s financial activities have been included.

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of Valley
Water has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect Valley Water’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient, reliable
information for the preparation of Valley Water’s financial statements in conformity with
GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, Valley
Water’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from
material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

Valley Water’s financial statements have been audited by Vasquez and Company LLP, a firm
of licensed certified public accountants. The purpose of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of Valley Water for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2025, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The audit included obtaining an
understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal controls, sufficient to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the
nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.

The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering unmodified opinions on Valley Water’s financial statements for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2025. The opinions rendered concluded that the financial statements are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s
report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

37 Attachment 1
Page 7 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

The independent audit of the financial statements of Valley Water is part of a broader,
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent
auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements but also on
Valley Water’s internal controls and compliance over the administration of federal awards.
The single audit review is applicable when Federal funded expenditures equal $750
thousand or more. This audit is typically completed after the audit of the financial statements
and will be issued separately for Valley Water’s Board of Directors (Board) acceptance.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. Valley Water’'s MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditor.

Valley Water Profile

The mission of Valley Water is to provide Silicon Valley safe, clean water for a healthy life,
environment, and economy. Valley Water operates as a State of California special district
under the authority of the 1929 Santa Clara Valley Water District Act or District Act (Wat.
Code, § Ch. 60, Refs & Annos). The District Act governs the structure, function, and
operations of the Board, which governs Valley Water and directs the Chief Executive Officer.

Valley Water is the primary water resource agency for Santa Clara County (County),
California. It is the largest multi-purpose water supply, watershed stewardship, and flood
management special district in California. It acts not only as the County's primary water
wholesaler but also as its flood protection agency and is the steward for its streams and
creeks, underground aquifers, and Valley Water-built reservoirs. For fiscal year 2025, Valley
Water aﬂ?pted a net operating and capital budget of $963.6 million to provide these critical
services!l.

Valley Water serves the nearly two million residents of the County, an area of approximately
1,300 square miles which includes the County’s 15 cities and towns: Campbell, Cupertino,
Gilroy, Los Altos, Los Altos Hills, Los Gatos, Milpitas, Monte Sereno, Morgan Hill, Mountain
View, Palo Alto, San Jose, Santa Clara, Saratoga, and Sunnyvale. Valley Water also serves
certain unincorporated areas of the County.

Valley Water sells treated water to 8 water retail companies, cities, and towns that service
communities within the County via their own distribution systems. There are also private well
owners in the County, for which Valley Water levies a groundwater production charge for
water pumped from the ground. San Jose Water Company is the largest water retailer
served by Valley Water, and currently provides water service to over one million customers.
Revenues from San Jose Water Company for the sale of treated water and production of
groundwater comprise over 50% of the water charge related revenue for Valley Water’s
Water Enterprise. For Fiscal Year 2025, total budgeted outlays for water supply management
totaled $681.0 millionf?.,

1 Valley Water FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Budget, chapter 3, page 7
[ Valley Water FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Budget, chapter 6, page 47

3 8 Attachment 1
Page 8 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

A steady supply of safe, clean water to the County residents requires Valley Water to operate
and maintain a complex delivery and treatment system that includes 3 water treatment
plants, an advanced water purification center, 10 local reservoirs and dams, a water quality
laboratory, dozens of groundwater recharge basins, 3 pumping stations and approximately
150 miles of pipelines. Water supplies include local surface water and groundwater, imported
water, and recycled water. Water conservation is also an important part of the water supply
strategy because it reduces water demands and helps improve water supply reliability.

The Board has established groundwater benefit zones in accordance with the District Act.
The objective of establishing various groundwater benefit zones is to recover costs for the
benefits resulting from Valley Water activities within that zone. In Fiscal Year 2021, the Board
modified the boundaries of existing groundwater benefit zones W-2 and W-5 and created two
new zones; Zone W-7, which overlays the Coyote Valley, and Zone W-8, which includes
areas below Uvas and Chesbro Reservoirs. The four modified zone boundaries ensure that
rate payers are grouped in a way that reflects the most recent and relevant data regarding
services and benefits received by well users.

To ensure an adequate and reliable supply of high-quality water, Valley Water has partnered
with cities and water retailers in the county to develop recycled water supplies. About 5% of
the County’s total water use currently consists of recycled water, limited primarily to
landscaping and industrial uses. The Board’s plan is to expand the use of recycled water in
the coming years.

In 2010, the Board approved agreements with the City of San Jose to partner and build the
Silicon Valley Advanced Water Purification Center (SVAWPC), a facility designed to produce
about eight million gallons per day (MGD) or about nine thousand acre-feet per year of highly
purified water. Valley Water and the City of San Jose entered into a ground lease and
property use agreement (the “Ground Lease”) with respect to the City of San Jose owned site
in North San Jose on which the SVAWPC is located. In addition, Valley Water and the City of
San Jose entered into an integration agreement (the “Integration Agreement”) with respect to
the operation of the SVAWPC. Valley Water and the City of San Jose each have the annual
option to terminate the Integration Agreement on or after June 30, 2021, in accordance with
its terms. The Ground Lease provides that if the Integration Agreement is terminated, the
Ground Lease will simultaneously terminate and upon such termination, Valley Water would
be required to surrender the facilities of the SVAWPC to the City of San Jose. The book
value of the SVAWPC facilities as of June 30, 2025 is $61.1 million. In June 2025, the city
councils of the City of San Jose and the City of Santa Clara and Valley Water’s Board
approved the finalization and execution of the City of San Jose Option Agreement for First
Amendment to Ground Lease and Property Use Agreement (the “Option Agreement”). The
Option Agreement provides Valley Water with the option to amend the Ground Lease to
expand the property leased thereunder in order to accommodate the construction of the San
Jose Purified Water Project — Phase 1 direct potable reuse demonstration facility. Once the
CEQA process for the project is complete, the other agreements that enabled SVAWPC wiill
also be amended, including the Ground Lease, the Operations and Maintenance Agreement
and the Integration Agreement. The proposed amendments would remove the automatic
termination clause and extend the term from 2050 to 2065.

39 Attachment 1
Page 9 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

The SVAWPC in North San Jose commenced full operation in March 2014. Currently, purified
water produced by the SVAWPC is not used for potable (drinking) purposes and is instead
blended with existing recycled water to enhance its quality for non-potable purposes such as
irrigation, cooling towers and industrial applications.

In December 2019, Valley Water’s Board approved a 76-year agreement with the cities of
Palo Alto and Mountain View to secure a minimum of 9 MGD or about ten thousand acre-feet
per year of wastewater effluent through an effluent transfer option. Under the agreement,
Valley Water will pay $0.2 million per year for the option to receive the wastewater effluent
until June 1, 2033 or the point in time when Valley Water begins to receive the wastewater
effluent, whichever occurs first. If Valley Water exercises its option, 9 MGD of effluent would
be delivered to a regional purification facility to be constructed and owned by Valley Water.
The purified water, which would be a locally controlled drought resilient supply, could be used
for either indirect potable reuse (e.g., recharge local groundwater basins) or direct potable
reuse (raw water or treated water augmentation, subject to future regulatory requirements). If
Valley Water exercises the option, Valley Water would pay $1.0 million per year for the
effluent plus an inflation escalator for the 76-year term of the agreement. Valley Water has
not made a decision as to whether it will exercise the option to receive wastewater effluent
under the agreement. In addition to the foregoing option, Valley Water will contribute $16.0
million to be used to fund either: (1) a portion of the costs of a local salt removal facility at the
Regional Water Quality Control Plant in the City of Palo Alto to provide a higher quality of
recycled water for irrigation and cooling towers; or (2) in the event that the cities of Palo Alto
and Mountain View decide not to construct the local plant within 13 years of the effective date
of the agreement, to fund other recycled water or water supply projects. In February 2024,
the Valley Water Board of Directors placed the project to build a regional purification facility
on hold due to affordability issues. This decision will be reviewed in two years.

Valley Water also provides stream stewardship that encompasses managing flood and storm
waters within the County. The 1929 Santa Clara Valley Water District Act requires Valley
Water to uphold the safety of the Santa Clara County residents from floods and storm waters,
monitor the condition affecting watersheds and riparian corridors, and provide for the
protection of property and the natural environment along creeks and rivers, and at the edge
of the San Francisco Bay. For fiscal year 2025, total budgeted outlays for watershed
management and flood protection totaled $304.2 milliont!.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition
Local Economy

Located south of the San Francisco Bay Area, Santa Clara County is the sixth largest county
in California, with a population of approximately 1.9 million“l and measures approximately
1,300 square miles. The northwest portion of the County, known as Silicon Valley, is home to
many leading computer and electronics companies such as Nvidia, Google, Apple, Cisco,
Intel, VMware, Hewlett Packard, Applied Materials, Adobe, and several other Fortune 500
companies.

Bl Valley Water FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Budget, chapter 6, page 3
4l California Department of Finance, Demographic Research Unit, Report E-4, Population Estimates, May 2025

40 Attachment 1
Page 10 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

It ranks as the 3rd wealthiest county in the nation and second in annual median income at
$159,674% Real estate values declined 2.0% year over year with the median home valued
at $1.59 million compared to $0.41 million for the whole United States!".

In 2025, Silicon Valley's economy remains globally dominant in innovation but is slowing in
growth. Venture Capital investment is strong at $69 billion, yet employment dipped sightly,
housing costs remain extreme, and wealth divides continue to widen, coupled with persistent
housing challenges for residents Bl. While commercial office vacancy is high, it appears to be
turning a corner. Large commercial office buildings selling for less than pre-pandemic values
are being acquired by investors betting on recovery including venture-invested Al companies.
Return-to-work mandates by large companies and the federal government are starting to
draw workers back to offices.F!

June 2025 unemployment rate for San Jose-Sunnyvale-Santa Clara, California, state and the
whole United Sates were 4.7%, 5.4% and 4.1%, respectively. This is an increase from the
June 2024 unemployment rate of 4.1%, 5.2% and 4.1%, respectively. The San Jose-
Sunnyvale-Santa Clara unemployment rate increased but was better than the rest of
California but higher than the whole United States at June 2025!'°. Professional and
business services continued to show weakness due to tech layoffs. Meanwhile, the region’s
population estimate (as of January 2025) of 1.9 million approximated that of the prior year!“.

Santa Clara County's inflation rate is slightly below the state's average but close to the
national rate. The consumer price index (CPI) for the San Francisco Bay Area, California and
the nation as of June 2025 showed an increase of 1.5%, 3.0% and 2.70%, respectively when
compared to the same month last year. This is a slight decrease in contrast to the prior year
(June 2024) CPI increase of 3.2%, 3.3% and 3.0%, respectively!'!l. California housing and
services remain primarily inflation driven while energy costs provided some relief. Food
prices rose moderately.

California's drought conditions had eased in the north but persisted in the south. In early
2025, Northern California began to recover from drought after heavy winter storms. By
March 2025 it was drought-free thanks to the wet winter and spring. Recovery was strongest
in the Bay Area and Sacramento Valley!'?. Nevertheless, Valley Water continues to implore
residents, businesses and farms to make water conservation a way of life and encourage a
voluntary reduction in water use.Valley Water has used a multi-faceted approach—combining
incentives, education, enforcement, partnerships, and strategic planning. As climate change
creates extreme weather events such as severe droughts and flooding, Valley Water
continues to invest in water infrastructure to ensure a reliable water supply for generations to
come. This includes upgrading and maintaining existing pipelines and water treatment plants,
evaluating new water storage projects, increasing the use of recycled and purified water, and
progressing on the Anderson Dam Seismic Retrofit project. In addition, Valley Water is

[51 Jordanjosh.com, 5 Richest Counties in the US, Sinenha Singh, July 12, 2025

1] Zillow Home Value Index, Santa Clara County, October 31, 2025

"l Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis, Median Sales Price of Houses Sold for the US, Q2 2025

8 Joint Venture Silicon Valley, 2024 Silicon Valley Index, March 6, 2025

[®1 Bay Area Council Economic Institute, Silicon Valley's 2025 Outlook: Challenges persist amidst Al-driven
Resurgence, Sean Randolph, January 6, 2025

[0 Bureau of Labor Statistics, News Release, July 18, 2025 and Economy at a Glance

"] State of California, Department of Industrial Relations, Consumer Price Index - California,10/242025 update

[”2INOAA, Drought update - California, 2025
41 Attachment 1
Page 11 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

using all financial resources available to offset the negative effects of the prior years of
drought on water rate charges to constituents by vigorously pursuing federal and state grant
funding.

Long-term Financial Planning

Valley Water plans, manages, and carries out work to meet policies established by the Board.
Under Valley Water’s form of Policy Governance, these “Ends” policies describe the mission,
outcomes, or results to be achieved by Valley Water staff. Balancing the Ends policies are
Executive Limitations, which set limits on staff activities in fulfilling the Ends. Alignment of
plans and resources with the Ends policies helps the Board fulfill the critical responsibility of
defining, balancing, and prioritizing “what benefits, for what people, at what cost,” and
enhances Valley Water staff's accountability in using budgeted resources to accomplish
those ends.

Valley Water supports activities that carry out its mission through the following three highest-
level “End Policies™3l.

+ EZ2 - Valley Water provides a reliable, safe, and affordable water supply for current and
future generations in all communities served.

» E3 - Natural flood protection is provided to reduce risk and improve health and safety
for residents, businesses, and visitors, now and into the future.

* E4 - Water resources stewardship to protect and enhance ecosystem health in Santa
Clara County.

The fiscal year 2024-25 budget included over $62.0 million for the contractual obligations of
water purchases with the federal Central Valley Project and the State Water Project. In
addition to contract water, Valley Water's budget included Water Banking expenses of
approximately $5.6 million to bring approximately 27,800-acre feet of water to the county
from Semitropic Water Storage District located in Kern County and an additional $6.6 million
in supplemental water purchases to help mitigate the impact on water supply of the multi-
year storage capacity loss of Valley Water’s largest dam at Anderson Reservoiri'4.

Valley Water’s Semitropic groundwater bank reserves were at 86% or 304,084 acre-feet and
valued at $130.8 million as of June 30, 2025. Semitropic Water Storage District has reported
elevated concentration of 1, 2, 3 trichloropropane in some of its underground wells. There is
currently insufficient information to conclude whether these detections could impact banking
operations. Impacts could potentially include higher pumping, recovery and treatment costs,
and possible impaired recovery of banked water supplies. Because the Semitropic water
bank is located in Kern County, downstream of Valley Water, banked water must be returned
by exchange with State Water Project water from the Delta. In critically dry years or in the
event of a Delta disruption, there may be insufficient State Water Project supplies to facilitate
withdrawal of supplies from the bank.

131 www.valleywater.org/how-we-operate/board-governance-policies
4 Valley Water FY2024-25 Operating and Capital Budget, chapter 4, page 5

42 Attachment 1
Page 12 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

The State has placed operating restrictions on five of Valley Water’s ten dams due to Seismic
safety conditions. Valley Water’s immediate response was to allocate a total of $2.6 billion in
its FY25-29 Capital Improvement Program to fix four of these dams (Almaden, Anderson,
Calero and Guadalupe). The scope for the fifth dam (Pacheco) was expanded to include a
significant capacity expansion of the reservoir at an estimated cost of $2.8 billion(?3l.

For the Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project, Valley Water is partnering with Pacheco Pass
Water District and San Benito County Water District. This Project will encompass the
acquisition and expansion of this reservoir from 6,000 AF to 140,000 AF and will provide
water quality benefits, operational flexibility, emergency storage, flood protection, and
ecosystem benefits. On July 24, 2018, the California Water Commission awarded $484.55
million to support the project, including an early funding award of $24.2 million. In February
2021, the maximum conditional eligibility determination was increased to $496.7 million to
reflect an inflation adjustment of 2.5%!"¢. In March 2022, the maximum conditional eligibility
was increased to $504.1 million to reflect an inflation adjustment of 1.5%.

The Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) includes 76 projects totaling $10.8 billion to
implement the goals and objectives of Valley Water’'s program and master plans. Valley
Water has been and continues to be successful in leveraging funding for its capital projects
through partnerships with federal, state, and local agencies. Of the $10.8 billion total funding
needed, $1.3 billion is expected from Valley Water’s various partners, such as the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers (USACE), and the remaining $9.5 billion from Valley Water. These
projects are grouped into five types of improvements!'’:

» Water supply capital improvements — 43 projects contributing to “End Policy E-2”

* Flood protection capital improvements — 14 projects contributing to “End Policy E-3”

» Water resource stewardship capital improvement — 12 projects contributing to “End
Policy E-4"

» Buildings and grounds capital improvements — 3 projects supporting Valley Water
efforts to achieve the “End Policies”

* Information Technology capital improvements — 4 projects supporting Valley Water
efforts to achieve the “End Policies”

On November 3, 2020, the Measure S (Safe, Clean Water and Natural Flood Protection or
Safe Clean Water) parcel tax met the two-thirds super majority vote required for approval
with a voter passing result of 75.6%. The measure renewed Valley Water’s existing parcel
tax, without significantly increasing rates. The voter-approved special parcel tax funds
projects addressing the following community priorities:

Ensure a safe reliable water for the future.

Reduce toxins, hazards, and contaminants in our waterways.

Protect our water supply and dams from earthquakes and other natural disasters.
Restore wildlife habitat and providing open space.

Provide flood protection to homes, businesses, schools, streets, and highways.
Support public health and public safety for our community.

[51Valley Water FY2025-28 Capital Improvement Program, chapter 2, page 7
16l Valley Water FY2025-29 Capital Improvement Program, chapter 2, page 2
'71Valley Water FY2026-30 Capital Improvement Program, chapter 1, pages 8 and 9

43 Attachment 1

Page 13 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

The renewed Safe Clean Water Program builds on the success of the Clean, Safe Creeks
and Natural Flood Protection (Clean, Safe Creeks) plan approved by the voters in 2000, as
well as the Safe, Clean Water and Natural Flood Protection Program that replaced the Clean,
Safe Creeks measure, which was approved by voters in November 2012. The program is
funded by a combination of revenues from the continuation of an annual special tax, reserves
carried forward from the 2012 program, and state and federal funding.

The revenue received from the special parcel tax for fiscal year 2025 was $53.2 million.

Relevant Financial Policies

End of Year Balances

Valley Water policies for end-of-year balance re-appropriations are as follows:

* Any remaining appropriation balances at the end of the fiscal year for capital projects
are annually re-appropriated for continued use in those same projects in the following
fiscal year. These amounts shall be consistent with the planned expenditure schedule
identified in the 5-year CIP.

* Any variances at the end of the current fiscal year in Operating and Capital Reserves
from those estimated in the budget not otherwise re-appropriated above shall result in
corresponding adjustments to the estimated reserve appropriations in accordance with
Valley Water Reserve policy.

Valley Water maintains a commercial paper program for funding capital projects. Commercial
paper is used to provide low-cost interim financing during construction. Valley Water issues
long-term debt obligations over a 30-year term to repay principal outstanding on the
commercial paper. On December 9, 2024, Valley Water closed on a $250.0 million direct
issue commercial paper (CP) program that replaced the previous CP program, which expired
on December 10, 2024. The new direct issue CP program will be supported by a letter of
credit provided by Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation and will provide for the issuance of
CP certificates directly by Valley Water instead of through the Valley Water Public Facilities
Financing Corporation. On April 29, 2025, Valley Water extended the Non-Syndicated
Revolving Line of Credit with US Bank in the amount of $150 million for three years beyond
the April 29, 2025, expiration date, which superseded the $170 million syndicated bank line of
credit that Valley Water established in October 2020 to ensure ample liquidity for ongoing
capital projects and to meet general financing needs despite the economic uncertainties
related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Budgetary Controls

Valley Water adopts an annual budget in June to be effective July 1 for the ensuing fiscal
year. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, special revenue funds,
and for all proprietary funds. The COP construction and COP debt service funds are not
budgeted.

Legal budgetary (expenditure) control is established at the fund level, further controlled within
the fund at the category level. The categories are defined as the operating budget
(operations and maintenance, debt service, and operating projects) and the capital budget
(capital improvement projects) in the budget and actual budgetary basis schedules.

4 4 Attachment 1
Page 14 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

Valley Water also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as a means for
accomplishing budgetary control. Budget adjustments that increase or decrease revenue
projections, appropriations or reserves of any fund require Board approval. Budget and
actual comparisons are provided in this report for each fund for which an appropriated annual
budget has been adopted. For governmental funds, this comparison is presented starting on
page 145 as part of required supplementary information and selected watershed activities
starting on page 157 as part of supplemental information. For proprietary funds, this
comparison is presented starting on page 163 as part of the combining and individual fund
statements and schedules.

The guidelines used by Valley Water in developing its formal budget process are from those
recommended by the National Advisory Council on State and Local Budgeting, and the
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).

Reserve Requirements

Valley Water’s financial policies establish the levels at which reserves shall be maintained.
Valley Water reserve policies address the need for both operating and capital reserves, and
funding of contingency and future liabilities. The level of reserves maintained and the
policies behind them are reviewed annually with the Board of Directors during budget
deliberations.

More information about Valley Water’s reserve policy is discussed in Valley Water's FY
2024-25 Operating and Capital Budget.

Major Initiatives

Highlights of activities and accomplishments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025 include
the following:

* In July, 2024, the Department of Water Resources (DWR) approved Valley Water's 2021
Groundwater Management Plan after DWR's first periodic evaluation of the groundwater
sustainability plan alternative (Alternative) for the Santa Clara and Llagas subbasins.
DWR's approval confirms that the Alternative satisfies the objectives of the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and substantially complies with related
regulations. SGMA requires periodic evaluations of alternatives at least every five years.

* On July 12, 2024, Valley Water released a Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) on
the Coyote Creek Flood Protection Project (Project) for public review. Preparation of the
Draft EIR fulfilled Valley Water's lead agency responsibility under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The Project objectives are to plan, design, and
construct improvements along approximately nine (9) miles of Coyote Creek, between
Montague Expressway and Tully Road in the City of San Jose. The primary objective of
the Project is to provide protection from floods up to the level that occurred on February
21, 2017, equivalent to approximately a 5% flood (20-year event).

4 5 Attachment 1
Page 15 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

* On August 6, 2024, the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) approved the Direct Potable
Reuse (DPR) Regulations. The DPR regulations had previously been adopted by the
State Water Resources Control Board on December 19, 2023. The effective date of the
regulation is October 1, 2024. DPR is the planned introduction of highly treated recycled
water either directly into a public water system or into a raw water supply immediately
upstream of a water treatment plant. The finalization of DPR regulations opens up new
possibilities for implementing large-scale water recycling projects throughout the State.
Valley Water is working to implement the San Jose Purified Water Project - Phase 1 (DPR
Demonstration Facility) in collaboration with the Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara.

* Golden mussel, an invasive mollusk native to China and Southeast Asia, was discovered
in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta during FY 25. This discovery is the first known
occurrence of golden mussels in North America. Like quagga and zebra mussels, golden
mussels pose a significant ecological threat to California's native species, ecosystems,
and water infrastructure due to their ability to colonize hard surfaces, clogging water
intakes, screens, and pipes. Starting January 2025, boats leaving Calero Reservoir were
offered a voluntary exit inspection to help prevent the potential spread of golden mussels.
This collaborative effort between Santa Clara County Parks and Valley Water will
complement the mandatory boat entrance inspection that was instituted in 2008.

+ On May 15, 2024, the Coyote Creek Flood Management Measures Project received the
2025 Project of the Year Award from the American Public Works Association (APWA)
Silicon Valley Chapter. APWA is an international educational and professional association
of public agencies, private sector companies, and individuals dedicated to providing high
quality public works goods and services. The APWA Silicon Valley Chapter recognized the
Coyote Creek Flood Management Measures Project as a public works project that
demonstrated excellence in its design and construction. It was noted for its use of the
hydraulic press-in method for the installation of sheet piles to minimize construction noise
and vibration to minimize impacts to local residents and businesses as well as staying on
schedule despite several setbacks through collaborative efforts of the contractor, engineer
of record, construction management consultant, and project team.

Completed capital projects in fiscal year 2025 include the following:

» Construction of Cross Valley Pipeline Extension
» Construction of Rinconada Water Treatment Plant Residual Remediation Project
» Implementation of the Capital Project Management Information System

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Valley Water
for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2024. This was the 28th consecutive year that Valley Water has received this prestigious
award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, Valley Water must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

46 Attachment 1
Page 16 of 205



Letter of Transmittal (continued)

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
annual comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

The preparation of this ACFR represents the culmination of months of concerted team effort
by diverse Valley Water staff, including team members from Financial Planning and
Management Services Division, Water Supply Division, Information Technology Division,
General Services Division, Human Resources Division, and Office of the District Counsel. In
addition, special thanks to Valley Water staff in all groups for responding so positively to the
requests for detailed information that accompanies each annual audit. The role of Vasquez
and Company LLP is also acknowledged for their significant technical contribution and
assistance.

Special thanks go to Oliva Manaloto, General Accounting Unit Manager; the following
Accounting staff: Debbie Brown, Thao Thi Nguyen, Ofelia Hsieh, Gloria Chou, Elaine Lee,
Nicole Truong, Godwin Adofo and Emma Pao; and the rest of the Financial Planning staff:
Carmen Narayanan, Charlene Sun, Enrique De Anda, Hoan Cutler, Steven Peters, Kristie
Resendez, and Adrian Liu for their talent and dedication in preparing this financial report.
Finally, we wish to express our sincere appreciation to Valley Water’s Board of Directors and
management for providing policy direction and a firm foundation of support for the pursuit of
Valley Water’s mission.

Darin Taylor
Chief Financial Officer

Melanie Richardson
Interim Chief Executive Officer

417 Attachment 1

Page 17 of 205



GFOA Certificat<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>